



# Field Trials Newsletter

Winter 2024

## Pointer & Setter Champion Stake 2024 report

By Jon Kean

The Kennel Club Champion Stake 2024 for Pointers and Setters, in association with sponsors Red Mills, has been won by a three-year-old Irish Setter dog FTCh Coldcoats Reggie, owned by Neil Crozier from Cheshire. Remarkably, Neil only began field trialling a year ago and won the Scottish Field Trials Association's Novice trial at Tollishill Estate in August last year. He qualified his Irish Setter at the West Dartmoor Working Gundog Club's Open Stake at Swinton Estate in North Yorkshire in July this year.

The Champion Stake is the sport's premier event and is organised in alternate years by the Scottish Field Trial Association and International Gundog League (Pointer and Setter Society). The 2024 Champion Stake was held on Friday August 9, at Byrecleugh Estate in the Scottish Borders by kind permission of the Duke of Roxburghe.

The Champion Stake Judges were Sara Chichester, Bill Connolly and Nicola Harris.

The Championship was staged just 3 days before the start of the grouse shooting season. The very wet weather throughout the Spring had affected breeding success for all species of ground-nesting birds across the country, Red Grouse among them. As the summer Pointer and Setter field trial circuit progressed in England and Scotland, it became clear that many grouse shooting days were to be cancelled.

Eighteen and a half brace of top-class Pointers and Setters took to the moor. All the dogs had been awarded a first or second in Open stakes in the last two years. The Championship programme was full of useful information including previous winners going back to 1869!



Champion Stake winner Neil Crozier and his Irish Setter FTCh Coldcoats Reggie  
© Jon Kean

## A round-up from the editor

Welcome to the winter 2024 edition of the Field Trials Newsletter.

This edition of the newsletter hosts the Pointer & Setter Champion Stake report from 9 August 2024, as well as some of our usual features including reminders to judges, secretaries and competitors, Working Gundog Certificate awards and a report from the World Championships.

We would like to give our congratulations to those competitors who have gained awards during the 2024/25 season so far. Good luck to those competing in the Spaniel Championships in January! The Spring edition of the newsletter will host the reports from

these, as well as the Retriever and HPR Championships.

Hope you all have a very Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year!

If you have any questions relating to the Kennel Club's field trials, please contact Kate Broers at the following email address – [ft.secretary@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:ft.secretary@thekennelclub.org.uk)

If you have any queries relating to field trials or have general questions relating to licences, judges etc, please email the team at [gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk)

**The field trials department**

## Meet the team

### Debbie Deuchar

Senior Manager Canine Activities



### Alison Morley

Activities Liaison Manager

**Tel:** 020 7518 1059

**Email:** [gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk)



### Gemma Hallisey

Events Co-Ordinator

**Tel:** 020 7518 1059

**Email:** [ft.secretary@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:ft.secretary@thekennelclub.org.uk)



### Kate Broers

Gundog Events Manager

**Tel:** 020 7518 1059

**Email:** [ft.secretary@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:ft.secretary@thekennelclub.org.uk)

To receive a copy of our newsletter straight to your inbox, sign up today at: [thekennelclub.org.uk/fieldtrials](https://thekennelclub.org.uk/fieldtrials)

### Continued from page 1

Byrecleugh Head keeper Drew Ainslie took us to his best ground or at least where he thought was our best chance of meeting grouse and he did not disappoint. It was great to see so many birds on the Muckle Law beat and every brace of dogs had an equal opportunity to find birds. Rory Butler was Gun for the day and did a splendid job going to points on the left wing and the right wing. In the first round the dogs were asked to run a cheek wind which was not easy as Head keeper Drew wanted to preserve this ground for both rounds.

The dogs had to deal with both strong winds along with high heather which was very dry and a serious test. The scenting conditions were excellent for the dogs.

Champion Stake Judge Bill Connolly said *"We had some great dog work in the first round with Neil Crozier's Irish Setter FTCh Coldcoats Reggie being top dog after the first round, he set a high standard, but many other dogs were close behind."*



Champion Stake Judges Bill Connolly, Nicola Harris and Sara Chichester © Jon Kean

Notable dogs were Terry Harris's Pointer Koram Gemma Sparkfield, Monsieur Laurent Hild's Pointer FTCh Gerensary Pinot handled by Richard MacNicol, Steve Robinson's FTCh Shanrycon Diamante, Hugh Brady with two dogs, Irish Setter FTCh Ballydavid The Murrigan and Joan McGillycuddy's Irish Setter FTCh Artemis of the Kingdom, Joe O Sullivan's Irish Setter Gardenfield Jarvey Girl, Steve Lound's Pointer Fowington Jesse of Fleetstalk, Howard Kirby's Pointer FTCh Sparkfield Steel of Mullenscote, Kim Brown's Irish Setter Shanrycon Dexter and Linda Westron's Irish Setter Ballyellen Merkel at Aurichalcum.

Six and a half brace made it into the second round. We lost some hard running dogs mostly due to bumping birds in the difficult conditions, the high Heather making it even harder, especially for the smaller dogs. FTCh Coldcoats Reggie again did not disappoint in the second round running with great style and pace, beautiful head carriage and two solid points producing the birds when instructed to do so, as near a perfect performance as you could get at any trial."

Judge Nicola Harris said "The ground selected by Drew Ainslie, head keeper, enabled us to work the first round in 3 strips of 6 brace. The wind was a strong cheek wind, and the ground tested the pace, style, and stamina of all the dogs. There was an excellent show of grouse in a year that has seen a poor breeding season for many sporting estates. The first round many dogs rose to the occasion and put in a great performance.

It was a pleasure to witness the display of quartering by these top dogs and we endeavoured to give each dog an opportunity to find and produce grouse. Being the Champion Stake, we were looking for the best of the best and were in agreement as to those dogs that were successful in getting into the second round."

Judge Sara Chichester said "The dogs that were successful quartered the ground systematically with drive, coping with the terrain and wind well and on finding game moved in freely on command. Poor groundwork, unresponsive dogs and noisy handling were penalised - we were looking for the 'best of the best'. The grouse were also causing difficulties for the dogs to locate as they were well grown and often running and scattered and there was a lot of residual scent on the ground. Finds on the right, due to the wind, would often be well forward of the centre of the beat. Hence it was difficult to walk forward of a previous production without losing ground and also casting dogs straight into birds again. Dogs were judged accordingly and not penalised for an 'unproductive' point where grouse were known to have recently lifted from."

The three judges had no problem agreeing that Neil's dog was the best dog on the day. Some of the other dogs came up in the second round while others lost ground. We had a hare chase, others missing birds which can easily happen when we were pushing grouse in front of us splitting up the coveys.

Overall, the quality of the dog work was such that a non-productive point would drop a dog from first to way down the list.

Winning handler Neil Crozier was presented with the coveted Heywood Lonsdale Perpetual Challenge Trophy by Red Mills Chair Bill Connolly. Neil told me "I am absolutely blown away by the achievement. I am so proud of my dog's performance, the hundreds and hundreds of hours of training coming to fruition was incredibly satisfying. As a bonus, Reggie absolutely loved it. A few times this year other competitors had said he was running well, and they all quoted the same adage 'beware the man who turns up with just one dog'. Well, that has been me for my whole trialling career of a year, I might start quoting that myself now."

This year a film documentary will be produced by the Scottish Field Trials Association for our sport's premier event to illustrate the work that Pointers and Setters do on a Grouse moor. It has been filmed by Kirk Norbury, a filmmaker and photographer based in Scotland where he documents rural life. Special thanks to the following organisations for providing sponsorship towards the making of the film – thank you Red Mills, BASC, Scottish Field Trials Association, Pointer Club of Scotland, Northern Counties Pointer and Setter Society, The Gordon Setter Association, Scottish Association for Country Sports and the Scottish Gundog Association.



Champion Stake trophy presentation  
© Jon Kean

**The awards for the Champion Stake 2024 were as follows:**

**1st place** - Mr Neil Crozier's Irish Setter FTCh Coldcoats Reggie

**2nd place** - Mrs Joan McGillycuddy's Irish Setter FTCh Ballydavid Artemis of the Kingdom, handled by Dr Hugh Brady.

**3rd place** - Mr Davy O'Neill's Pointer Crahan Amber at Shanrycon

**4th place** - Mr Laurent Hild's Pointer FTCh Gerensary Pinot, handled by Richard MacNicol

**Diplomas of Merits were awarded as follows:**

Mr Joe O’Sullivan’s Irish Setter Gardenfield Jarvey Girl.

Ms Linda Westron’s Irish Setter Ballyellen Merkel at Aurichalcum

Mr and Mrs Steve Lound’s Pointer Fowington Jesse of Fleetstalk

Dr Hugh Brady’s Irish Setter FTCh Ballydavid The Morrigan of the Kingdom

**Some statistics from the 2024 Summer Pointer/Setter circuit**

\*Nine Puppy Stakes were cancelled owing to lack of entries except The Kennel Club’s Puppy Derby. There were no awards in the Derby.

\*There were 6 new Field Trial Champions created. Terry Harris Pointer FTCh Sparkfield Sidekick, Sara Chichester’s Gordon Setter FTCh Wiscombe Journey Juice, Steve and Sharon Lound’s Pointer FTCh Fowington Jesse of Fleetstalk, Jon Kean’s Pointer FTCh Morness Archie, Davy O’Neill’s Irish Setter FTCh Shanrycon Casey and Champion Stake winner Neil Crozier’s Irish Setter FTCh Coldcoats Reggie.

\*Steve Robinson won 4 Open Stakes. Terry Harris won 3 Open Stakes. Steve and Sharon Lound and Davy O’Neill won 2 Open Stakes each. Bill Connolly and Jon Kean both won one Open Stake.

\*There were no awards in 5 Novice Stakes, one Open Stake and one Novice Stake were cancelled due to bad weather.

---

## The Kennel Club Open AV HPR and Novice AV HPR Stake

The Kennel Club’s Open and Novice AV HPR Stakes were held on Friday 1 and Saturday 2 November at Emlehope and Burngrange Estate. Kindly hosted by The Kennel Club and Head keeper Raymond Holt and sponsored by Sporting Saint.

The well-spaced game gave dogs the opportunity to show their ground coverage and hunting drive, with

several of the open dogs being able to achieve a tidy point and retrieve on their runs. The stunning scenery of the Estate was also a fantastic backdrop to watch the dogs work.

Unfortunately, the scent and light wind conditions were challenging, particularly for the novice dogs, meaning there were no awards for the Novice Stake.



Emlehope and Burngrange Estate  
© The Kennel Club



Judges Jim Bird and Mark Spearing lead the competitors to the running ground © The Kennel Club



Mrs A Davis Green and Large Munsterlander Ch Adbecker Dancer © The Kennel Club



Ms S Jenkins with Tickencote Teach Me Tonight for Gerstenfeld (JW) and Mr H Kirby with Tickencote Body and Soul of Mullenscotte © The Kennel Club

The awards were as follows for the Open Stake:

- 1st place** – not awarded
- 2nd place** – not awarded
- 3rd place** – Tickencote Teach Me Tonight for Gerstenfeld (JW)  
German Wirehaired Pointer, owned and handled by Ms S Jenkins
- 4th place and Gun's choice** – Tickencote Body and Soul of Mullenscotte  
German Wirehaired Pointer, owned and handled by Mr H Kirby
- Certificate of Merit** – Glenquin Artemis for Gerstenfeld  
German Wirehaired Pointer, owned and handled by Mr T Warner
- Certificate of Merit** – Kinlochmhor Rowanberry  
German Shorthaired Pointer, owned by Mr S Symmers and handled by Ms A Cunningham

The awards were as follows for the Novice Stake:

- Gun's choice** – Nebel Vom Hollental (IMP DEU)  
German Shorthaired Pointer, owned and handled by Mr M Marr

# The World Championships of Practical Hunting with Pointing Dogs and St. Hubert Cup

By Meryl Asbury

The 44<sup>th</sup> World Championships of Practical Hunting with Pointing Dogs and St. Hubert Cup were held in the Rugvica region of Croatia on Thursday 24 – Sunday 27 October 2024. Day one and Day two of the World Championships was on Friday 25 October and Sunday 27 October respectively and the St Hubert was on Saturday 26 October.

There were teams from 24 countries. In the World Championships of Practical Hunting with Pointing Dogs there were 139 dogs competing; 73 Continental (HPRs) and 66 British and Irish Pointing Breeds. The Continental and British and Irish Pointing Breeds were split into two groups (Batteries). All dogs ran in pairs. The St Hubert competitors were split into three Batteries for the Gentlemen and three Batteries for the Ladies. This is the first time there were three Batteries for the Ladies due to the high numbers of competitors.

In the St. Hubert Cup there were 18 gentlemen with 36 dogs and 15 ladies with 29 dogs. In the Spaniel St. Hubert there were 4 handlers with 8 dogs.

A training day was arranged Thursday 24 October when competitors could go out with guides and they could choose how many birds they wanted shot for their dog. The team took advantage and were very pleased with their dogs which gave them a bit of confidence for the World Championships. The Opening Ceremony was held later that day and all the teams, carrying national flags, were individually presented on stage while their National Anthems played.

The terrain for the Championships was a flood plain with small and medium sized fields growing crops, such as lucerne, with high grassy banks lining the River Sava and drainage channels. It was ideal running ground for the dogs to demonstrate their skills. It also provided excellent viewing. The quarry species was pheasants which were shot over the pointing dogs. Conditions were difficult due to early morning mists and very light winds which kept swirling and changing direction.



Running ground at Rugvica  
© Meryl Asbury



Team GB at the Opening Ceremony of the World Championships  
© Meryl Asbury

Team GB participants and entries were as follows:

### World Championship Pointers and Setters

John Naylor and Pointer, Aurichalcum L'Escargot of Bitternboom

Neil Crozier and Irish Setter, Coldcoats Reggie

### World Championship Continentals

Howard Kirby and German Wirehaired Pointer, Tickencote Body and Soul of Mullenscotte

Francis Briley and Hungarian Wirehaired Vizsla, Zoldmali Irka-Firka at CanalGame

Zoe Dicker and Hungarian Wirehaired Vizsla, Zoltarous Lupin

Bradley Dymond and German Shorthaired Pointer, Ch Quintana Diamond Dust at Friarsbelle

### St Hubert (Mens)

Francis Briley and Hungarian Wirehaired Vizsla, FTCh Vanda Zoldmali CanalGames

Howard Kirby and German Wirehaired Pointer, Tickencote Body and Soul of Mullenscotte

### Team Captain:

Meryl Asbury

### Team Vet:

Zoe Dicker

On the first day Howard Kirby with Tickencote Body and Soul of Mullenscotewas the only one out of his group to go through to the water test, gaining a very creditable Very Good. On the second day of the World Championships Francis Briley also achieved a "Very Good" going through to the water test, gaining four points each.

We are pleased to announce that Team GB came joint second with France, taking silver. Croatia took first place in the Continentals Teams.

### World Championship St. Hubert Results:

#### Ladies with Pointing Dogs

1st and World Champion - Nikolina Koščević, Arslan Si Vis Pacem, German Wirehaired Pointer (Croatia)

#### Gentlemen with Pointing Dogs

1st and World Champion - Boban Anđelković, Stefanesis El Lucky, Brittany Spaniel (Serbia)

### World Championship of Practical Hunting Results:

#### British and Irish Pointers and Setters - Individual and World Champion

Simba Du Gouyere, Pointer. Handler: José Manuel Mora Mota (Spain)

#### British and Irish Pointers and Setters - Team Results

1<sup>st</sup> Spain

2<sup>nd</sup> Italy

3<sup>rd</sup> Germany

#### Continental Pointing Dogs - Individual and World Champion

Murat, German Shorthaired Pointer. Handler: Emil Kliman (Croatia)

#### Continental Pointing Dogs - Team Results

1<sup>st</sup> Croatia

2<sup>nd</sup> France

2<sup>nd</sup> United Kingdom

This is a considerable achievement as it is five years since Team GB competed, due to Brexit and Covid intervening. The camaraderie and passion for the pointing breeds, amongst all the competitors, is what makes this competition so special, and many friendships are made across the different countries. It is also such a privilege to watch some of the best pointing breeds in the world performing at top level.

Many congratulations to the team who were also great companions on a very long trip.

Our thanks must go to the Kennel Club and Connolly's Red Mills for their sponsorship. This achievement would not have been possible without their sponsorship.



Howard Kirby at the water test on a shot mallard  
© Meryl Asbury

## Working Gundog Certificate

Congratulations to the following handlers and their dogs who have achieved the Working Gundog Certificate on dummies.

### RIVERWILLOW MOONLIT NIGHT

Retriever (Labrador), Dr F Spencer

### GAMERIGHTS PAPER DRAGON

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs J McCarter

### CLANDRIFT BRING ME SUNSHINE

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs V Bowen

### GUANGXI SNOW BUD

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs M Dick

### ROTHAYGARTH SOVEREIGN

Retriever (Golden), Ms J Edwards

### OIYOU DOUBLE ESPRESSO

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs S Tagg

### SPRINGSHOTT TIMOTHY

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs H Flindt

### LEOSPRING SWEET ON YOU

Retriever (Labrador), Mrs S Mills

### MADDISTREAM ROCK ROSE

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mr D Bull

### WYREBECK ENDLESS WAVE

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs S Billinghamurst

### HALANGYDOWN BRANDYPOINT

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs J Hart

### ARDENBROOK ARIZONA

Retriever (Labrador), Mrs K Smith

### WISTASTON SECRET LOVE

Retriever (Flat Coated), Miss W Croker

### RONEVORG WHISPERING ANGEL

Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs J Campbell

### BUDDY GOLD

Retriever (Labrador), Mr J Mayne

### TWEEDISLE LINDORES

Retriever (Flat Coated), Ms L Peers

### GREAT BURGLEKUTT

Spaniel (English Springer), Miss D Buckland

### QUICKAWAY IVY OF ARMTHORPE

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs H Garner

### ROOKHURST QUEENIE

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs K Burns

### SPINNCHETTI TEETER

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs L Redman

### CORONA FIRE BABY OF KILNLAKE

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs K Williams

### TORNEBERGE BAROLO

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs K Grange

### TORNEBERGE RIOJA

Spaniel (Cocker), Miss J Card

### RAKERFIELD AERO

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs A Sturrock

### JACOFLINTBAY KRYSTAL

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs T Carter

### MERAKIBEA MARGO

Spaniel (English Springer), Ms M Doherty

### TORNEBERGE ISABELLA

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs L Morgan

### PERDIU HEREFORD RUSSET

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs B Franklin

### HELLERHAYES LADY

Spaniel (Cocker), Miss S M Adcock

### KENYNTEN HANDSOME HAKE

Spaniel (Cocker), Miss K Sexon

### POPELLA SPONGE

Spaniel (Cocker), Mr H Cottle

### MURRAYEDEN HURRICANE

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs J Cottle

### ASH FALLING LEAVES

Spaniel (Cocker), Mr R Gibbs

### BORDER PENNY

Spaniel (Cocker), Miss E Bailey

### BUDSTOCK HAGRID

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs H Hughes

### STOCKINGFORD DOLORES

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs N Chapman

### MYMMSBROOK MANDILARIA

Spaniel (Welsh Springer), Mrs A Lyon

### SIKA RUPERT REEVES

Retriever (Labrador), Mrs J Rippon

### CRANSCOMBE VELVET

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs K Foster

### HIGHSNOAD GLAMOURDALE

Spaniel (Clumber), Mr R Beastall

### HAWKCOURT SPORT

Spaniel (Clumber), Mrs A Cleal

### MIADSC TROPICAL SUNRISE

Hungarian Wirehaired Vizsla, Mrs R D Summerfield

### LADY SHELBY ROSE

Spaniel (English Springer), Mr B Catlin

### HERONVALLEY GEISHA GIRL

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs T Hall

### OLIVE NUTMEG

Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs P Ford

### AILINGMUIR FLAMING STAR \*

Retriever (Labrador), Mrs K Barnard

### AMBERHAWK HOLLY

Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs J Verity

### CURLIANNE RAGNAR LOTHBROK

Spaniel (Cocker), Mr K Relf

### WELLINGTON BOOT

Crossbreed, Mrs S Jones



**KENTWONE PUMPKIN AT LABERIUS**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mr T McNamara

**NADORPUSZTAI FUVOLA (IMP HUN)**  
Hungarian Vizsla, Miss J Grigonyte

**VALLEY PURE**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mr I Morrison

**GREENBANKES KARA**  
Lagotto Romagnolo, Miss S Tindall

**SNOW WHITE SOURCE OF HAPPINESS FOR CREEAARK**  
Spaniel (Clumber), Miss E Hirst

**MEADOWSKYE MR BRIGHTSIDE**  
Spaniel (Clumber), Mr K Hawkes

**MADADHBHAN HERA**  
Spaniel (Clumber), Mrs L Warren

**WHITEROW CAJA**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs V Yeo

**AVEEGOTUN ACE**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Miss P Cooke

**MAISEACH LOCH MORAR AT HAWKOAK**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mr D Clark

**KENZDUO COOPER**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mr R Janes

**WOOLIEBOURNE LOBSTER LUNCH**  
Spaniel (Clumber), Mrs J Morton

**FARRINGDON FLYER OF BUDSTOCK**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs Z Luke

**SUMMER NIGHTS BY ROXDALE**  
Spaniel (Welsh Springer), Miss S Gilmore

**KEVERAL LEANNAN**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs L Kay

**GWENADILLO TWO FOR TEA**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs L Kay

**CADDOWN FERN**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs L Kay

**KEVERAL LOLOLUI**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs K Wright

**FALLOWPARK DARK GROVE**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs A Sheehan

**WOODABUDGE UNITY**  
Retriever (Labrador), Miss G Cann

**JETSTARSKI IF I CAN DREAM**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs L Hollingdale

**BRADRIDGE LADY EDITH**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs D Dunn

**STAVERTON YAKUB OF PERCUIL**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs H Ford

**HESPERIS ODIN**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mr A Brown

**SYRUP DE CYBIL**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs S Hopper

**HARMONY OF HOLYWATER**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs J Nuthall

**BENTLEY COURT WHIRLWIND**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs C L Armstrong-Colquhoun

**BELLELMWHIN HOLLY**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs A Lane

**TIPOTIME WARBLER**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs C Revell

**BELLELMWHIN WALUNT**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs A Yeo

**DEVONGEM DAWN SPARKLE**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs A Yeo

**CORBINSBERE QUEENS GAMBIT**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs G Carpenter

**MOON MAEVE**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs S Millet

**KENTWONE ORANGE FIRE**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mr S Fry

**FIREFLY HIIEWAG**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Miss H Veryard

**PUERTOPERROS ST LEONARD**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mr S Shaw

**JENOREN BIANCO**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mrs D Parry

**MISS MALLORYS ONCE AND FOR ALL**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs A Reitmaier

**MISS MALLORYS PERFECT TIMING**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs A Reitmaier

**MISS MALLORYS LET'S GO CRAZY**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs A Reitmaier

**GWENADILLO IRISH DANCER**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Miss J Calverley

**BATTSROCK SWEET CHILD O MINE**  
Retriever (Chesapeake Bay), Mrs D Herring

**BROWN SNOUT**  
Spaniel (Irish Water), Mrs Z Green

**SCRUMPTIOUS SWEET COPPIN**  
Spaniel (Irish Water), Mr J Scrimshire

**ORYXES KISSING THE WAVES ON TIVALAKE**  
Retriever (Nova Scotia Duck Tolling), Mr N Burchell

**SWANTONWOOD BLACK BRAMBLE**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mr R Merry

**PRINCESS PHILIPPA**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mr R Clark

**TORNEBERGE TEMPRANILLO**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mr M Prosser

**WESTSTOCK CAPERCAILLE**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs L Wray

**WELLECREEK QUEEN OF ROCK**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Miss A Nash

**UNAKITE ALEXANDRIYA**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs K Janes

**HARVEY ODIN**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mr R Hubbard

**SOULDLEYPARK BABY'S IN BLACK**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs K Edwards

**FIREFLIGHT VINNIE**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs J Edwards

**BAILEY'S IRISH CREAM**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mr P Grange

**UNAKITE ODIN**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs K Janes

**HANVILLE JETS GEMSTONE ONYX**  
Retriever (Labrador), Miss H V Winship

**LANLWYD MORGANA LE FAY**  
Retriever (Golden), Mrs J Horne

**MONTUUX'S LORD DANTE**  
Retriever (Golden), Dr V Dubberley

**KAYZELLE KOOKIES 'N' KREAM**  
Retriever (Golden), Mrs L Furbank

**ALSTROEMERIA MALACHITE**  
Retriever (Golden), Mrs J Horne

**WARRENTOR BOLD AS BRASS**  
Retriever (Golden), Miss K M J Clunie

**KENZDUO WILD MUSHROOM**  
Retriever (Golden), Mrs L Galitzine

**HOLMECLIFFE'S DANCE DAPPER FOR EIDERVERALLEY**  
Retriever (Golden), Miss R Perry-Taylor

**TAWNYHILL ODYSSEY AT DEKRIS**  
Retriever (Golden), Miss C Wolstenholme

**ARROWHILL ARIANA AT OTSOA**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Ms P Goriainoff

**SHAMROCK PRINCE OF THE SEVEN KINGDOMS**  
Retriever (Golden), Dr E Bardossy

Congratulations to the following handlers and their dogs who have achieved the Working Gundog Certificate on game.

**BONARIO GALATEA (A.I.)**  
Bracco Italiano, Mrs K Parris

**LOWFORGE XANDER**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mrs C Moore

**KENTWONE PINKBERRY PASSION**  
Retriever (Labrador), Mrs C Burnham

**LAWRENCE HAYSTACK STEAMER**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Mr A Beaumont

**CUANDOR SUPERSTITION**  
Spaniel (English Springer), Miss A McCarthy

**CHURNSWAY CASPER**  
Spaniel (Cocker), Mr G Pace

**PRINCESS ELSA AT LARCHESWAY**  
Retriever (Flat Coated), Mrs S McGeehan

**KENZDUO ON THE MONEY**  
German Shorthaired Pointer, Mr R Price

## Kennel Club Field Trial Panel Judges List

The following judges have been added to the official panels of Field Trial Judges:

**RETRIEVERS "A"**  
Mr Mike Jones (3780)

**RETRIEVERS "B"**  
Miss Sharon Coby (3169)

**SPANIELS "A"**  
Mrs Alice Wise (3368)

**POINTER & SETTERS "A"**  
Mrs Jean Collins-Pitman (3373)

Following notification of retirement from the field trials panel of judges, The Kennel Club wishes to thank the following judges for their contribution to the gundog fraternity over the years:

Mrs Wendy Knight (1984) – A Panel Spaniel

Mr Joe Maclure (2449) – A Panel Retriever

## Applications for permission to hold field trials

Societies wishing to register their views on the following applications should do so electronically, stating reasons for supporting or objecting to the application. Please note that all letters should be sent by email to [gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk).

The applications will be considered at the next available Field Trials Committee meeting and therefore responses must be with the Kennel Club by 27 January 2025.

**Leicestershire Gundog Society**  
Open Spaniel (Cocker) Stake

**Slovakian Rough Haired Pointer Club (Provisional)**  
Novice Any Variety HPR Stake

**Gordon Setter Association**  
Show Gundog Working Certificate

## Amendments to Field Trials J Regulations

[NOTE: All regulation changes for the forthcoming season are listed in the back pages of the J Regulation booklets for reference]

The following regulation amendments have been approved and become effective on 2 February 2025:

**In the interest of clarity between the use of awards and places the following regulations have been amended.**

**J3.d.(3) Stakes****TO:**

(3) Novice Retrievers, Spaniels, ~~and~~ breeds which hunt, point and retrieve **and Pointers & Setters**: A stake which is confined to dogs which have not gained ~~a place, or places~~ **an award, or awards**, which would qualify them for first preference in the draw for Open stakes. ~~Pointers and Setters: A stake which is confined to dogs which have not gained a first, second or third in open stakes or first or two seconds in All Aged, Novice or Puppy stakes prior to the close of entries.~~

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J3.d.(5) Stakes****TO:**

(5) Other stakes may, with Kennel Club approval, be promoted by societies, but all stakes must be clearly defined in the schedule. ~~Places~~ **Awards** gained in stakes confined to Any Variety Spaniel [except Spaniel (Cocker) and Spaniel (English Springer)] will not qualify the dog for the purposes of Regulation J6.i.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J4.e. Application and documentation****TO:***Marked Card*

Following the trial the secretary shall send to the Kennel Club, within 14 days, a copy of the card with all **awards** ~~places~~ and certificate of merits marked, together with a copy of the draw.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J5.c.(3) Judges****TO:**

(3) Judging experience must include stakes judged at trials held by at least two different societies. Before being added to the Panel for Retrievers or Spaniels candidates for the B Panel must have handled a dog to win at least one field trial stake for the appropriate subgroup and have considerable field trial experience. Before being added to the A Panel for Retrievers or Spaniels, candidates must have handled a dog to win at least one open stake or in the case of Retrievers, been ~~placed~~ **awarded** 2nd in a 2-day open stake and, since being added to the B Panel, have substantially increased their field trial experience. For HPRs, before being added to the A Panel or the B Panel, candidates must have handled a dog to a win at a novice, all-aged, or open HPR stake.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J6.i.(2) Entries****TO:**

(2) *Spaniels*

A first, second or third in an Open Stake or a first in a Novice Stake or All Aged (excluding trials restricted to Any Variety Spaniel except for Spaniel [Cocker] and Spaniel [English Springer]). ~~To qualify for preference in the draw in an Open Spaniel stake, the dog must have gained the appropriate places in a stake open to its breed.~~

(Deletion struck through.)

**J6.j. Entries****TO:**

j. Order of draws

(1) Open stakes

- i. Members' first preference dogs which have gained ~~places~~ **awards** as shown above.
- ii. Members' second preference dogs which have gained ~~places~~ **awards** as shown above.
- iii. Non-members' first preference dogs which have gained ~~places~~ **awards** as shown above.
- iv. Non-members' second preference dogs which have gained ~~places~~ **awards** as shown above.
- v. Members' dogs which have gained other ~~places~~ **awards**.
- vi. Non-members' dogs which have gained other ~~places~~ **awards**.
- vii. Other dogs.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J7. Awards and Prizes****TO:**

A award is any placing in a stake decided by the judges which may be first, second, third or fourth.

The following may also be conferred at the discretion of the judges: at a Championship, Diplomas of Merit and in other stakes, Certificates of Merit.

~~A prize is a reward for merit in competition.~~

~~All prize money must be paid within one month of the fate of the field trial, and paid subject to return in event of a subsequent disqualification.~~

~~The amount of prize money offered by a society may be varied to relate to the number of entries received and may be reduced if the full number of entries is not received.~~

Awards at a field trial must be discrete; equal awards are prohibited.

The judges are empowered and instructed to withhold any prize or award if, in their opinion, the dogs competing do not show sufficient merit.

(Deletion struck through.)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J(A)2.b. The management, conduct and judging of field trials**

**TO:**

- b. If a separate water test is included as part of a stake, all dogs placed in the awards, **and those who have achieved a Diploma of Merit or Certificate of Merit** must have passed this test.

(Insertion in bold.)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J(G)1.d. Kennel Club regulations for Gundog Working Tests**

**TO:**

- d. Scurries, Pick-Ups, and other similar events are exempt, as are noncompetitive club training assessments where no **awards places** are on offer. The Kennel Club also recognises that events involving unregistered dogs do sometimes take place. Such events cannot, however, be considered to be GWTs under these Regulations.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J(G)2.b.(1) Definition of Gundog Working Tests**

**TO:**

- b. The following classes of competition are recognised by the Kennel Club:
  - (1) OPEN. Open to all dogs of a specified breed or breeds, although preference may be given to dogs which have gained **an award a place** or certificate of merit at a field trial, been placed first, second or third in an open GWT, or **first in won** a Novice GWT.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**J(G)2.b.(2) Definition of Gundog Working Tests**

**TO:**

- (2) NOVICE. Confined to dogs which have not gained **an award or a place** or certificate of merit at a field trial, been placed first, second or third in an Open GWT or first in a Novice GWT held in accordance with Kennel Club Rules and Field Trial Regulations.

(Insertion in bold. Deletion struck through)

(Effective from 2 February 2025)

**To add clarity and transparency to all draws for both secretaries and competitors, the following regulation has been amended.**

**Regulation J6.e.**

**TO:**

- e. If entries or nominations exceed the number of permitted runners, the right to compete in a Trial shall be decided by ballot (subject to Regulation J6.i. which

related to preference in the draw for open stakes). Societies must ensure that all eligible owners/members are given the opportunity of having their preferred dog entered into the first ballot (See J6.j). The society must publish the result of this ballot in full to all applicants. **This must include the draw preferences the dogs are entered under.** Where an online system, approved by the Kennel Club, has been used to take entries, the ballot must be carried out using the same online system, and the result forwarded to the Kennel Club at the same time that competitors are notified.

(Insertion in bold)

**Regulation J8.b.(9) and Regulation J(A)3.h were amended and in effect from February 2024 however the following was omitted from these amendments. To provide consistency, Regulation J(B)7.d.(2) has been amended as follows:**

**J(B)7.d.(2) Retrievers; Trial Procedure**

**TO:**

If the game situation permits, two retrieves in the first round, then one retrieve in the second round is the usual procedure. It is imperative that the chief steward should be informed of any dogs eliminated or discarded for any reason. This will enable the chief steward to have the correct dogs available when required. ~~It is, however, the judge or judge's responsibility to ensure that the right dogs are in line.~~

(Deletion struck through.)

(Effective 2 February 2025)



**FIELD TRIALS LIAISON COUNCIL MEETING 2025**

The next meeting of the Field Trials Liaison Council will be held on **Thursday 1 May 2025.**

Proposals for inclusion on the agenda should reach the Field Trials Liaison Council Secretary by **Friday 31 January 2025.**

Each eligible society may submit, through their representative, items for the agenda. Individuals may also submit items for the agenda direct to The Kennel Club. Proposals must be concise and, if an amendment or an additional regulation is proposed, the regulation number must be given.

All items for inclusion on the agenda should be sent by email to: **[gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:gundogs@thekennelclub.org.uk)**

A full list of Field Trials Liaison Council representatives can be found at: **[thekennelclub.org.uk/competinginfieldtrials](http://thekennelclub.org.uk/competinginfieldtrials)**



## Field Trial Champions

The following Gundogs have been made up to Field Trial Champions during the 2021/22 season.

### German Wirehaired Pointer

FTCh KRAGBORG ELSA (IMP DNK) owned by Mr J Hudson

FTCh MORSEBECK PATCH owned by Mr L Loveridge

FTCh TICKENCOTE ONE WAY TICKET owned by Miss U Russell

### Hungarian Vizsla

FTCh HUNTERSTONE RHEA owned by Mrs S E Mattravers

FTCh HUNTERSTONE UNO owned by Mr T A Mattravers

### Hungarian Wire Haired Vizsla

FTCh JAGUAR DU DOMAINE SAINT HUBERT AT BRYANTSCROFT (IMP FRA) owned by Mr S R C Major

### Irish Setter

FTCh DUNROON GINGER STORM OF WISCOMBE owned by Ms S A K Chichester

FTCh SHANRYCON DIAMANTE owned by Mr S Robinson

FTCh SHEANTULLAGH DJOUSE (IKC) owned by Mr B Connolly

### Pointer

FTCh LANGWELL KERRY OF MORNESS owned by Mr L Hild

FTCh SNAP DRAGON owned by Mr L Anderson

### Retriever (Labrador)

FTCh AVONSTREAM AIXINHA owned by Mr G A Paterson

FTCh BELLSPADDLE OTTO owned by Mrs J M Rollinson

FTCh BERRYSHOT BERNIE owned by Mr S Berry

FTCh BRECKMARSH ETHAN OF CAYTONFELL owned by Mr M Demaine

FTCh BRINDLEBAY BRIGANDS owned by Mr M J Tallamy

FTCh BUCCLEUCH BOWHILL OF SANDRINGHAM owned by The Late H M Queen Elizabeth II

FTCh BURRENDALE ACE owned by Mr T O'Hare

FTCh CROSSTONE TRICKSTER owned by Mr K T J Coey

FTCh DRAKESHEAD CALICO owned by Mr N H Hansen

FTCh EMMANYGAN SPRING OF CHATSWORTH owned by Duchess Of Devonshire

FTCh ETOMANNI COMANCHE owned by Mr J A Cardno

FTCh GUNNERSPEG APOLLO owned by Mr S Capstick

FTCh JAKE OF BLACKBURN owned by Mr D Boyle

FTCh LEACAZ ISLE OF RUM AT CARDY owned by Mr L M L Rolland

FTCh LOWTREY KLAY OF TICEFIELD owned by Mr K N Broomfield

FTCh MILLBUIES GHILLIE owned by Mr G Wood

FTCh OMACHIE COLONEL OF CARNOCHWAY owned by Mr F J Forbes

FTCh RIVERVIEW FARM FINALIST (ATCAW01219USA) owned by Mr O Ingram

FTCh STAUNTONVALE LEMON POSSET owned by Mrs L J Hill

FTCh TAGABEA LOGANBERRY owned by Mrs E Taylor

FTCh TAGABEA PRETTY THING OF LUDESLOWNE owned by Mr K Nettleingham

FTCh TURPINGREEN BOHOL owned by Mr K Butler

### Spaniel (Cocker)

FTCh CENTREWALK SPECKLED WOOD OF SUREFLY owned by Mr J Atkinson

FTCh CLAXBYWOLD BRODIES COMET OF KINGCOTT owned by Mr R Claydon

FTCh CLEESTANGATE CHARMIN CASIE owned by Mr M A Brown

FTCh DELPHAVEN ENYA owned by Ms E K Varty

FTCh EPISCOPI BOJANGLES owned by Mrs A S Jones

FTCh FERNMOSS BLACK ROSE owned by Mr R Ellershaw

FTCh GLENLAGGAN FIREWORK owned by Mr S D Winspear

FTCh KENAITEEN SAGITTA owned by Mr D Lee

FTCh KILTONBECK ARROW owned by Mr S D Winspear

FTCh LOWALLIN LORCAN owned by Mr T S Phillips

FTCh MALLOWDALE DAME owned by Mr I J T Openshaw

FTCh MALLOWDALE QUIN owned by Mr M Walsh

FTCh TAFFSWELL TOFFEY owned by Mr L Williams

FTCh POPSHEATH MANDARIN owned by Miss A Hayes

FTCh PRIORSMEADOW BEE BOP owned by Mr G Lockyer

### Spaniel (English Springer)

FTCh BARCUDWEN MOLLY owned by Mr A P Jones

FTCh BELVDEN TROTT owned by

Mr C J & Mrs Y L Mackender

FTCh BORRANSFELL BOND owned by Mr G Veasey

FTCh BROOMFIELD ADAM owned by Mr E B Scott

FTCh CARNIVAL WILLOW owned by Mr P W Smith

FTCh CLODAHILL QUIV (IKC) owned by Mr P Brennan

FTCh CORNERMARSH GAYLE ING GIRL owned by Mr P Barker

FTCh CORNERMARSH HONEY OF POOLGREEN owned by Mr W J Clulee

FTCh DAWSONLEE KARISSMA owned by Mr S T Dixon

FTCh DAWSONLEE LEGACY owned by Mr S T Dixon

FTCh DAWSONLEE LIGHTENING AT FOLLYVIEW owned by Mr N S Satchwell

FTCh HELMSWAY HOT GOSSIP owned by Miss S E Quinn

FTCh KANSAS KATE owned by Miss S Higgins

FTCh RIXTONMOSS RHIANNA owned by Mr L D Wingfield

FTCh RYTEX RAPEDS owned by Mr I Openshaw

FTCh RYTEX RIZZLE owned by Miss A Hayes

FTCh SAXONVALE AXIS owned by Mr A Cunningham

FTCh SHIVECK TIME TWIDDLER owned by Miss T Siwek

The following Gundogs have been made up to Field Trial Champions during the 2022/23 season.

### English Setter

FTCh GORTINREAGH JEMMA (IKC) owned by Mr D Collins

### German Shorthaired Pointer

FTCh STUBBLEMERE FULMAR owned by Mr P Pearson

FTCh SUTCHEST BRAUN GINO owned by Mr J Bird

### German Wirehaired Pointer

FTCh BEECHWOLF TONKA owned by Mr S R C Major

FTCh BRUNO VON SCHWARZENBERG (IMP RUS) owned by Mr R Akopov

FTCh MERLE HAGGARD owned by Mr G Saint

FTCh TRUDVANG MERCURY owned by Mr S Herrero

**Gordon Setter**

FTCh WISCOMBE TOMINTOUL owned by  
Ms S A K Chichester

**Hungarian Wire Haired Vizsla**

FTCh IPOR VON DER WRANGELSBURG AT CULDREIN (IMP  
DEU) owned by Mr R J & Mrs G R Buchan

FTCh ZOLDMALI VANDA CANALGAME (IMP SRB) owned  
by Mr F A Briley

**Irish Setter**

FTCh COLDCOATS MY NEWT owned by Mr S Robinson  
FTCh BALLYDAVID GAELFORCE OF THE KINGDOM owned  
by Miss J McGillycuddy

FTCh SHEANTULLAGH CORMAC (IKC) owned by  
Mr B Connolly

**Pointer**

FTCh AURICALCUM GLENTAISIE owned by  
Miss L Westron

FTCh CRAHAN SAPPHIRE owned by Mrs C Brown

FTCh GERENSARY PINOT owned by Mr L Hild

**Retriever (Labrador)**

FTCh ADORADEN TREVOR OF CAIRNGRYFFE owned by  
Mr K Haynes

FTCh ANNINGTONBAY MADDI MAY owned by  
Miss M D Brooks

FTCh ARCKLEBEAR CARIBOU owned by Miss C L Baker

FTCh ASH LIGHTNING OF LEADBURN owned by  
Mr W L Steel

FTCh BALBIRNIE LOGO OF THORNSHIP (IMP DNK) owned  
by Mr P V Dixon

FTCh BRINDLEBAY GERTIE TOO OF BIRDSGREEN owned  
by Mrs S C Gadd

FTCh BUCCLEUCH BRIDGEKNOWES OF CHATSWORTH  
owned by Duchess Of Devonshire

FTCh BURRENDALE DEE owned by Mrs M Edvinsson

FTCh COPPERBIRCH CABERNET OF TALLAMELIE (IKC)  
owned by Dr P K Dyson

FTCh CRAIGMADDIE MUFASA OF BISHOPBRAE owned by  
Mr D Logan

FTCh DRAKESHEAD CASEY owned by Mr S Capstick

FTCh DRAKESHEAD DREW OF LLANGYNIDR owned by  
Mr N Probert

FTCh FENDAWOOD PIONEER OF SPRINGFELL owned by  
Mr G Buchan

FTCh FLAGSDALE SWEEP owned by Mr R Drysdale

FTCh ISLEOFMAN GORSE OF WYLANBRIAR owned by  
Mrs D L Stevens

FTCh JOGOLO DARK MAGIC owned by Mr G Lowe

FTCh KNOCKYCLOVAUN RALPH (IKC) owned by Mr D Boyle

FTCh NOBSQUINTON NETTLE owned by Mrs C Raymond

FTCh SKOVAGER'S SIX MILE WOODCOCK (IMP DNK)  
owned by Miss L Munchaus Adsboel

FTCh SOTHEBYS CHOICE OF WEDGNOCK owned by  
Mr S J Richardson

FTCh TARNEDGE FLYNN owned by Mrs E L Parish

FTCh WESTERKAMES RIGLINE OF BROGDENVIEW owned  
by Ms K J Cousins

FTCh WILLOWRISE STAR SPINNER owned by  
Mr P A Wheeler

**Spaniel (Cocker)**

FTCh CAERFYRDDINS EIRA TEMPEST owned by  
Miss L Corbett

FTCh DIAMONDFINDA DIVE RITE IN owned by  
Mr J Atkinson

FTCh GLENRUSSELL SELENE owned by Miss A Hayes

FTCh HOWESYKE SILK owned by Mr J F Luxford

FTCh HOWESYKE STYLE OF TOMLINSWOOD owned by  
Mr J Elliott

FTCh POOLGREEN KIZZIE owned by Mr W J Clulee

FTCh ROWSTON SUBLIME OF TARNCRAG owned by  
Miss F Ardley

FTCh SMALLBROOK SKY owned by Mr G Marson

FTCh UPLANDS BLUEBELL OF BADGERFORD owned by  
Mr D Lee

FTCh WHISPERED SPECIAL SECRET AT EQUINECHO  
owned by Professor L Young

FTCh WOOLPITTS SHIN OF POOLGREEN owned by  
Mr W Clulee

**Spaniel (English Springer)**

FTCh CHURAIL CHALLENGE OF PURSLEY owned by  
Mrs N A Hunter

FTCh DDRAIGHELWYR BLAIDD owned by Dr H Thomson

FTCh GLENLAGGAN AMY owned by Mr M W Smee

FTCh HAGGHOUSE KING OF EBORAKON owned by  
Mr J O Dransfield

FTCh HEATHCROFT BLOSSOM owned by  
Mr G A Stubbings

FTCh HELMSWAY HOT BABE owned by Mr J Wardrope

FTCh PENWILLS PINOT owned by Miss A Hayes

FTCh POLLARAMA LUCY owned by Mr I Clarke

FTCh POOLGREEN JOSIE owned by Mr W Clulee

FTCh RYTEX RINGO (A.I.) owned by Mr I Openshaw

FTCh RYTEX RUPTURE owned by Mr I Openshaw

FTCh SEDGEWOOD POPPY OF COUNTRYWAYS (IKC)  
owned by Mr D Templar

FTCh SKITTER ANNIE owned by Mr B Faley

**The following Gundogs have been made up to Field  
Trial Champions during the 2023/24 season.**

**Bracco Italiano**

FTCh BONARIO FAGIANA owned by Mrs S & Mr A Parr

**English Setter**

FTCh GORTINREAGH JACK DUGGAN (IKC) owned by  
Mr G Devine

FTCh GORTINREAGH ORRA owned by Mr G Devine

**German Longhaired Pointer**

FTCh WAMILANGHAAR POINT BLANC OF CALDERA  
owned by Mr S D Kimberley

**Hungarian Vizsla**

FTCh HUNTERSTONE TYRION owned by  
Mr T A Mattravers

**Irish Setter**

FTCh BALLYELLEN JOY (IKC) owned by Mr D Collins

FTCh COLDCOATS GINNY owned by Mr S Robinson

**Pointer**

FTCh GLENCUAN MOLLY owned by Mr S R Heath  
 FTCh SPARKFIELD MOONDRIFTER owned by Mr T Harris & Ms M Jacques  
 FTCh SPARKFIELD MOONLIGHT owned by Mr T W Harris

**Retriever (Golden)**

FTCh TULLYSEDGE INCAS GOLD owned by Mrs S P Jordan

**Retriever (Labrador)**

FTCh ANEETERBEG SEAMUS owned by Mr A Latham  
 FTCh ARTISTRYN DICE owned by Mr D R Field  
 FTCh BRINDLEBAY MEAD owned by Mr M J Tallamy  
 FTCh BROCKLEBANK SKIPPER owned by Mrs C Finlan  
 FTCh COPPERBIRCH CHANEL OF TALLAMELIE (IKC) owned by Dr P K Dyson  
 FTCh DERRYHOAR MARTINI BY LISKONEY owned by Mr J M Peach  
 FTCh ETOMANNI MISSOURI owned by Mr R Laughton  
 FTCh JARAILSTAR HOGEN OF STAUNTONVALE owned by Mrs L Hill  
 FTCh JOFLESS EPAULETTE OF SHADOWBRAE owned by Mr T Bushby  
 FTCh KILPEN NIGHTCAP OF WATERFORD owned by Mrs R J Coley  
 FTCh MITFORTON TOUT DE SUITE OF HAWKERLINE owned by Mr M P Gould  
 FTCh PACKMORES TEAL owned by Mr M Bagg  
 FTCh RECTORYOAK APPALACHIA AT SHIMNAVALE owned by Mr R Johnston  
 FTCh RUSTLER MASTER owned by Mr T Munday  
 FTCh TEXACALI PRALINE OF MEONVALLEY owned by Mrs S J W Miles  
 FTCh TIDESHOT VINNY OF HIGHSEA owned by Mr K E Doughty

**Spaniel (Cocker)**

FTCh BAILDONMOOR BIELSA owned by Mr J P Deal  
 FTCh BRECKMARSH LARSON owned by Mr M Brown  
 FTCh BYRBWLL PEAKY BLINDER owned by Mr D J J & Mrs D V Rees  
 FTCh CLENTOHILL JORGIE owned by Mr A Doris  
 FTCh CRAIWARN TINKERS SERENADE owned by Mrs N D J Cannon

FTCh CWMCEILIOG SKID OF MONAGEA owned by Mr W J Sexton  
 FTCh DELPHAVEN GINA OF SMALLBROOKS owned by Mr G Marson  
 FTCh ENDASHAW DESIRE owned by Mr G Lockyer  
 FTCh GLENLAGGAN FIREBALL owned by Mr M W Smee  
 FTCh GLENLAGGAN FIREFLY owned by Mr M W Smee  
 FTCh HEATHCROFT FLORA owned by Mr G A Stubbings  
 FTCh POPSHEATH AMBER owned by Miss A Hayes  
 FTCh ROWSTON SPINNER owned by Mr D C Ormond  
 FTCh SKY OF WELLBANK owned by Mr W Clulee  
 FTCh STRIGIDAE ROUGH QUEST owned by Mr A LoCurto  
 FTCh TAFFSWELL RUBY owned by Mr P Williams

**Spaniel (English Springer)**

FTCh BARCUDWEN DESTINY OF HOWESYKE owned by Mr J F Luxford  
 FTCh BORRANSFELL MONEYPENNY owned by Mr D Massey  
 FTCh BROOMFIELD SARAFINA owned by Mr E B Scott  
 FTCh DAISYGATE ASTER owned by Mrs D Mould  
 FTCh DAWSONLEE MADDY owned by Mr S T Dixon  
 FTCh DRIMLAGO DRIFTER OF POOLGREEN owned by Mr W Clulee  
 FTCh HEATHCROFT DECLAN OF BRECKMARSH owned by Mr L Cooper  
 FTCh KILHOPEMOSS HARLEQUIN owned by Mr P Cassidy  
 FTCh MEIKLEBURN DARK ISLAND owned by Mr A Clouston  
 FTCh NOSSEWEJ FANTINE OF PURLODGE owned by Mr R Clarke  
 FTCh PHOENIXFLUSH KENDALL owned by Mr D Rayson  
 FTCh ROGART RUBEE owned by Mr W Johnstone  
 FTCh ROMAN LUCY OF SPANBELLA owned by Mrs T Nicholas  
 FTCh ROSEBAY MEADOW owned by Mr A Ladyman  
 FTCh RYTEX REO (A.I.) OF HOLLYDRIVE owned by Mr M Walsh  
 FTCh SAXONVALE BO owned by Mr R Wilson  
 FTCh SEVERN BIRCH BELLA owned by Mr A Ladyman  
 FTCh SHELLSPOON NUMERO UNO OF CINDERSASH owned by Mr O J Organ  
 FTCh SHIVECK PRIMAT owned by Miss T Siwek

## Find a Club

The Kennel Club has announced that its new and improved 'Find a Club' service is now available online. The new service includes a list of field trials clubs and the purpose of the service is to enable new dog owners to find local clubs in their area.

The Find a Club service can be found here:

[thekennelclub.org.uk/findaclub](http://thekennelclub.org.uk/findaclub)

Please ensure that you have reviewed your club information. Any amendments, including secretary details, can be updated via your online account.



**THE KENNEL CLUB**

**Looking for a club in your area? Visit Find a Club**

Visit [thekennelclub.org.uk/FAC](http://thekennelclub.org.uk/FAC)

# The Emblehope & Burngrange Estate Northumberland

A centre of excellence for working Dogs

This beautiful moorland estate stretches to some 7,550 acres and is absolutely ideal for walked up trialling and training for retrievers, spaniels and hunt, point and retrievers. The estate offers both pheasant and partridge shooting and the varied terrain offers opportunities for all breeds of gundog to demonstrate their natural working abilities. Woodland cover provides excellent hunting for spaniels whilst the stretching moorland is ideal for challenging retrieves and for the pointing breeds to show off their hunting abilities to the full.

**As a centre of excellence for working dogs, the estate also welcomes the full range of working dog activities including:**

- Field trials including Pointer and Setter Spring Stakes
- Gundog working tests
- Gundog training days
- Live game training days
- Pointing tests
- Working trials
- Bloodhound trials
- Activity training days
- Shooting and gundog activities



Book your training activities with the Emblehope Estate:  
[thekennelclub.org.uk/emblehope](http://thekennelclub.org.uk/emblehope) | [emblehope@thekennelclub.org.uk](mailto:emblehope@thekennelclub.org.uk)  
01296 318 540 ext 290